
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

Regular Meeting Agenda

Monday, November 9, 2015
4:00 p.m., Council Chambers

                      City of South Haven

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

Chairman Art Bolt, Tyler Dotson, Thomas Erdmann, Eugen Gawreliuk, Mike Henry, Robert 
Herrera, Stephanie Timmer, Andy Klavins, Doug Schaffer, Christine Valentine.

3. Approval of Agenda

4. Approval of Minutes – October 12, 2015

5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda

6.   Financial Report

7. Factory Condominium Reimbursement Request

8. Factory Condominium Demolition Revolving Fund Expenses

9.   General Comments

10.  Adjourn

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,
Paul VandenBosch
Secretary, Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

SOUTH HAVEN CITY HALL IS BARRIER FREE AND THE CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN WILL PROVIDE 
THE NECESSARY REASONABLE AUXILIARY AIDS AND SERVICES FOR PERSONS WITH 
DISABILITIES, SUCH AS SIGNERS FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED AND AUDIO TAPES OF PRINTED 
MATERIALS BEING CONSIDERED AT THE MEETING TO INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES AT THE 
MEETING UPON SEVEN (7) DAYS NOTICE TO THE SOUTH HAVEN CITY HALL.

1



Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

Regular Meeting Minutes

Monday, October 12, 2015
4:00 p.m., Council Chambers

                      City of South Haven

1. Call to Order by Bolt at 4:00 p.m.

2. Roll Call

Present:  Erdmann, Dotson, Gawreliuk, Henry, Herrera, Klavins, Timmer, Valentine, Bolt
Absent:   Schaffer

3. Approval of Agenda

Motion by Valentine, second by Klavins to approve the October 12, 2015 regular meeting 
agenda as presented. 

All in favor. Motion carried.

4. Approval of Minutes – July 13, 2015

Motion by Klavins, second by Timmer to approve the July 13, 2015 regular meeting minutes
as written.  

All in favor. Motion carried.

5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda

None at this time.

6.   Financial Report

VandenBosch gave an overview of the financial reports.

Motion by Dotson, second by Erdmann to accept the financial reports.

All in favor. Motion carried.

7. Brownfield Report

VandenBosch  explained  this  as  an  annual  report  where  capture  is  reported  and
payments/reimbursements are made. 

2



October 12, 2015
Brownfield Authority
Regular Meeting Minutes
DRAFT

To Roland J. Peterson, LLC $5,141.11 and to Lago Blue, LLC (Central Lofts; Larry Hollen-
beck) $24,878.20. 

Discussion ensued regarding The Preserve, which is currently at the tax tribunal. 

Motion by Valentine to approve Resolution #2015-03. Second by Erdmann.

All in favor. Motion carried.

Discussion ensued regarding the taxes being delinquent and at tax tribunal. Bolt noted the
calendar is running on that and we are well into the 12-year calendar.  VandenBosch noted
that  if  they  had  paid  those  taxes  the  city  would  have  to  reimburse  the reimbursement
amount. 

Dotson asked if there is a time table on the tribunal, generally, to which VandenBosch stated
that he did not research that and does not know. 

8.   Central Lofts Eligible Expenses

VandenBosch noted that Larry Hollenbeck has been working on adding units and has put
the parking lot in that was part of the Brownfield plan with the former developer, capping the
area where the coal and ash were formerly stored.  The Central Lofts have submitted for re-
imbursement  $129,079.38 along with  certification  from the environmental  consultant  and
with copies of invoices. 

Discussion ensued about the delinquent taxes and VandenBosch explained, “We take delin-
quent taxes off of the amount we reimburse.” VandenBosch stated that the developer will
only recover what he gets from the tax capture. 

In response to a question by Valentine  regarding the different  LLC name VandenBosch
noted that we are going to be reimbursing Lago Blue because we have a chain of assign-
ments for reimbursement and agreed it is important to determine who gets reimbursed.

Motion by Valentine to accept the expenses as eligible. Second by Henry. 

Abstention by Klavins.

All others in favor. Motion carried.

9.   General Comments

None at this time.

10.  Adjourn

Motion by Klavins, second by Erdmann to adjourn at 4:28 p.m.

All in favor. Motion carried.

2

3



October 12, 2015
Brownfield Authority
Regular Meeting Minutes
DRAFT

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

Marsha Ransom
Recording Secretary

3

4



Revenues
Property Tax Captures 91,528                         
Interest Income 2,072                           
Other Revenue -                               
Other Transfers In -                               
                Total Revenue 93,600                          

Expenditures
Administrative Costs
General Fund 6,000                           
               Total Administrative Expenses 6,000                           

Contractual Services 151,449                       
              Total Other Expenses 151,449                       

Total Expenditures 157,449                        

Year-to-Date Fund Gain/(Loss) (63,849)                        

Cash and Investments
Cash 254,749                       
Certificates of Deposit 279,982                       
Other Financial Investments 686,328                       
Total 1,221,058                  

City of South Haven
Brownfield Authority

For the period ended October 31, 2015

5



November 2, 2015

TO: Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

FR: Paul VandenBosch

RE: Factory Condominium Brownfield Reimbursement Request

The Factory Condominium Association has submitted two invoices from Horizon 
Environmental for brownfield reimbursement.

$6,281.30, invoice #20150798, September 28, 2015
$4,478.71, invoice #22801009.00-01, September 28, 2015

The total amount is $10,760.01.

Staff Recommendation:

Approve payment of $10,760.01 as brownfield reimbursement of the invoiced environmental 
expenses to the Factory Condominium Association.

6



7



8



9



10



October 21, 2015

TO: Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

FR: Paul VandenBosch

RE: Brownfield Reimbursement for Belgravia Health Club Demolition

The Belgravia Health Club demolition work has been paid as part of the general Brownfield 
Authority fund under a separate project number.

The terms of the Memorandum of Understanding with the Factory Condominium Association 
are that the funds will be paid out of the Factory Condominium brownfield plan, and that the 
brownfield plan total tax capture will be increased by the demolition amount.

The attached resolution by the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority would authorize the City 
to move funds from the Factory Condominium brownfield account to the demolition project 
account.  This is a transfer internal to the City accounting system.

The resolution would also direct staff to increase the total tax capture allowed to the Factory 
Condominium brownfield plan by the total amount of demolition work.

Staff Recommendation:

Approve the resolution approving brownfield reimbursements for demolition work at Belgravia 
Factory Condominium. 
 

11



BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
OF THE CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN

VAN BUREN AND ALLEGAN COUNTIES, MICHIGAN

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-04

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING BROWNFIELD REIMBURSEMENTS FOR DEMOLITION
WORK AT BELGRAVIA FACTORY CONDOMINIUM

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority of the City of
South Haven, Van Buren and Allegan Counties, Michigan, held in the City Hall, 539 Phoenix
Street, South Haven, Michigan 49090 on November 9, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. local time.

PRESENT:                                                                                                                          

ABSENT:                                                                                                                             

The following preamble and resolution was offered by Member                                  and
supported by Member                                     .

WHEREAS, the City of South Haven and the Factory Condominium Association have entered
into a Memorandum of Understanding related to demolition of the health club portion of the
Belgravia building; and

WHEREAS,  the  City  of  South  Haven  has  approved  a  brownfield  plan  for  the  Factory
Condominium which increases the tax capture amount of the previous brownfield plan by the
cost of demolition; and,

WHEREAS, An Act 381 Workplan has been approved by the DEQ which authorizes capture
and reimbursement of school operating taxes for specific demolition activities.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority approves
and authorizes reimbursement from the Factory Condominium brownfield plan to the City for
expenses related to demolition work at Belgravia Factory Condominium as follows:

Local Tax Capture $44,164.39

School Operating Tax Capture $29,010.61

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that detail of the expenses are provided in Exhibit A.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that that the maximum brownfield plan tax capture of the Factory
Condominium brownfield plan shall be increased by the total amount of $65,090.00.

RECORD OF VOTE:

Yeas:                                                                                                                                                 

Resolution 2015-03
- 1 -
12



Nays:                                                                                                                                                 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

                                                               
Arthur Bolt, Chair
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the
City of South Haven Brownfield Redevelopment Authority at a meeting held on the 14th day of
September, 2015, at which meeting a quorum was present, and that this resolution was ordered
to take immediate effect. Public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in compliance
with the Open Meetings Act, Act No. 167 of the Public Acts of Michigan 1976 (MCL 15.261 et
seq).

                                                               
Paul VandenBosch, Secretary

Resolution 2015-03
- 2 -
13



Belgravia Factory Condo Demolition
Expenses Eligible for Reimbursement

Factory Condo Act 381 Workplan Preparation Abonmarche Notes
Proposal Approved 1/15/15 Funding Source Expense Class

650 Data Collection for Required Work Plan Content Local Included in a Brownfield Plan, May 4, 2015 Approval
1,235 Preparation and Submission of Work Plan Local Included in a Brownfield Plan But Performed Prior to Approval (per 15(b) and 13(16)(c)(ii))
1,885 TOTAL Local Prior to Act 381 Workplan Approval

School After Act 381 Workplan Approval May 27, 2015
Remaining Invoice Amount Date Invoice Number

1,312.50 1312.5 01/29/15 110560 Abonmarche 8,085.00 Brownfield Plan Eligible: 100% Local

0 572.50 03/05/15 110748 Abonmarche 65,090.00 Work Plan Eligible: School 44.57%, Local 55.43%, not to exceed $155,000

Factory Condominium Demolition Planning and Technical Assistance

Proposal Approved July 1, 2014

700 Field Investigation

0 Coordinate Environmental Work

4,000 Develop Plans and Specifications

500 Develop Cost Estimates

1,000 Bidding Phase

0 Grant Management

TBD Surveying Services

6,200 TOTAL

Remaining Invoice Amount Date Invoice Number

6,200.00 .00 07/24/14 109328

3,160.50 3,039.50 08/20/14 109508 Abonmarche

2,566.75 593.75 09/19/14 109711 Abonmarche

1,754.25 812.50 11/10/14 110090 Abonmarche

1,350.25 404.00 11/20/14 110152 Abonmarche

1,042.00 308.25 04/14/15 110951 Abonmarche

740.75 301.25 04/29/15 111050 Abonmarche

355.75 385.00 05/15/15 111196 Abonmarche

0.00 355.75 05/21/15 111249 Abonmarche

Construction Administration Services Abonmarche

Proposal Approved June 15, 2015

2,850 Construction Administration Services

2,850 TOTAL

Remaining Invoice Amount Date Invoice Number

2,146.25 703.75 06/18/15 111432 Abonmarche

1,446.25 700.00 06/26/15 111483 Abonmarche

144.25 1,302.00 08/14/15 111914 Abonmarche

0 144.25 09/10/15 112186 Abonmarche

NESHAP Inspection (Asbestos Report) Villa

Proposal Approved 6/24/15

1,500

Remaining Invoice Amount Date Invoice Number

270.00 1,230.00 07/14/15 51378 Villa

Factory Condo Melching Expense Log Melching

Project 173

260-622-801-000

Factory Condo Act 381 Workplan

Proposal Approved 1/15/15

53,930 Demolition

4,085 CO #1

58,015 TOTAL

Remaining Invoice Amount Date Invoice Number

5,393.00 52,622.00 08/18/15 1 Melching

0 5,393.00 09/17/15 2 Melching

Factory Condo Roof Restoration, Future Construction Future Construction

Proposal Approved 8/19/15

675 West Side Middle Roof PLUS WOOD 

1,250 West Side Middle Roof Gutter

1,150 East Side Roof

3,075 TOTAL

Remaining Invoice Amount Date Invoice Number

80 2,995.00 10/06/15 2884 Future Construction

14



Belgravia Factory Condominium Demolition
Brownfield Plan and Act 381 Workplan Eligible

Brownfield Plan Eligible: 100% Local

Invoice Amount Date Invoice Number

1,312.50 01/29/15 110560 Abonmarche

572.50 03/05/15 110748 Abonmarche

3,039.50 08/20/14 109508 Abonmarche

593.75 09/19/14 109711 Abonmarche

812.50 11/10/14 110090 Abonmarche

404.00 11/20/14 110152 Abonmarche

308.25 04/14/15 110951 Abonmarche

301.25 04/29/15 111050 Abonmarche

385.00 05/15/15 111196 Abonmarche

355.75 05/21/15 111249 Abonmarche
8,085.00 TOTAL

Work Plan Eligible: School 44.57%, Local 55.43%, not to exceed $155,000

Invoice Amount Date Invoice Number

703.75 06/18/15 111432 Abonmarche

700.00 06/26/15 111483 Abonmarche

1,302.00 08/14/15 111914 Abonmarche

144.25 09/10/15 112186 Abonmarche

1,230.00 07/14/15 51378 Villa

52,622.00 08/18/15 1 Melching

5,393.00 09/17/15 2 Melching

2,995.00 10/06/15 2884 Future Construction
65,090.00 TOTAL

8,085.00 Brownfield Plan Local
36,079.39 Act 381 Workplan Local (55.43%)
44,164.39 TOTAL Local

29,010.61 Act 381 Workplan School Operating (44.57%)

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40


	BRA Agenda, November 9, 2015
	BRA Minutes October 12, 2015
	Financial Report
	Factory Condominium Reimbursement Request
	Factory Condominium Demolition Revolving Fund Approval



